
 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for February 7, 2024  
 - Pg.1 

 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday February 7, 2024 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
TO ATTEND IN PERSON: The meeting will be held at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay 
Boulevard. 
 
In addition to physical attendance at the address indicated above, the Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Services District is offering the following teleconferencing options as an alternative means for the public to 
participate in this meeting. 
 
TO ATTEND BY ZOOM WEBINAR: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85454370841 
 
TO ATTEND BY PHONE: +1 (669) 444 9171 or +1 (719) 359 4580 WEBINAR ID: 854 5437 0841  

 
 

Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.todb.ca.gov/  
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
3. Roll Call. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration. Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment. 
There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of Board 
members to discuss matters not on the agenda. We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during 
comment, and that you address all comments to the Board only. Any clarifying questions from the Board 
must go through the President. Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of the 
Directors. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes from January 17, 2024. 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices.  

 
D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATIONS 
 1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report. 
 2. Sheriff’s Office Report. 
 3. Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Report. 
 
 
E. MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 1. Town of Discovery Bay Sound Wall Update.  

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

President – Michael Callahan • Vice-President – Carolyn Graham  • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bryon Gutow • Director – Ashley Porter 
 

 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for February 7, 2024  
 - Pg.2 

 

 
 

F. PRESENTATIONS 
 1. Mid-Year Financials.  
 
 
G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

1. Discussion and Possible Action to Set the Date and Time of the 2024 Annual Board Workshop. 
  2. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Resolution 2024-01 Amending the Bylaws and Board Policy 
   of the Town of Discovery Bay. 

 
 
H.    MANAGER’S REPORT 
       1. Patio Project Update.  
       2. Community Meeting.  
         
 
I.      GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 1. Coffee with the General Manager.  
  
 
J. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 
 1. Byron Union School District – January 11, 2024 (Director Kevin Graves). 
 2. Contra Costa County Aviation Committee – January 11, 2024 (Director Kevin Graves). 
 3. Contra Costa County Airport Committee – January 22, 2024 (Director Kevin Graves). 
 
 
K.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 1. LAFCO – Call for Nominations and Names of District Voting Delegates dated January 16, 2024. 
 
L.  LEGAL REPORT 
 
 
M.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
N.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on February 21, 2024 beginning at 7:00 
p.m. at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for January 17, 2024 - Pg.1 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday January 17, 2024 7:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. Called business meeting to order 7:00 p.m.
2. Director Graham led the Pledge of Allegiance.
3. Roll Call was taken, and all members were present.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)

• The first speaker commented on multiple safety issues due to kids using motorized bikes.
• The second speaker commented on kids’ behavior in Discovery Bay.
• The third speaker commented on kids’ behavior at the Discovery Bay Shopping Center.
• The fourth speaker commented on kids' behavior on bikes.
• The fifth speaker commented on kids’ behavior at Cornell Park.

General Manager Dina Breitstein stated she contacted both the Sheriff’s Department and the Supervisor’s 
Office.  They both agreed to holding a community meeting where residents can voice their concerns. 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion.
1. Approve Regular Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting minutes from December 20, 2023.
2. Approve Register of District Invoices.
3. Elect Board Officers for Calendar Year 2024 – Michael Callahan President and Carolyn Graham Vice-

President.
4. Accept $6,000 Donation from Veolia North America to the Community Center.

Director Graves made a Motion to Approve the Consent Calendar. 
Director Gutow seconded. 
Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

D. PRESENTATIONS
1. Recognition of Director Ashley Porter’s Service as President of the Board 2023.

President Callahan thanked Director Porter for her service as President of the Board of Directors in
2023.

2. Veolia Presentation.

Presented by Anthony Harper, Project Manager for Veolia.

• Well #5 is not active. Cannot be used as an emergency back-up.

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Michael Callahan • Vice-President – Carolyn Graham  • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Bryon Gutow • Director – Ashley Porter 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

C1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 17, 2024 - Pg.2 

 

• Well #7 is still down for repairs. 
• There was one water quality complaint (odor) for the month of December. Issue was resolved by 

flushing the hydrant. 
• Conductivity level for December was <1900. 
• Annual conductivity level was 2,106. 
 
Director Graves commended Anthony Harper for getting the new permit which took effect January 1, 
2024. 

 
 

E. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
        1. Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize General Manager to Execute Veolia Memorandum of 

Agreement (MOA) - Energy Conservation & Renewable Energy Program Development. 
 
 Presented by John Burdette III, Senior Business Development Manager. 
 

• PG&E rates have increased by approximately 11.32% a year over the last 40 years. 
• CPUC will grandfather older systems in and continue to uphold the original agreements if 

enrolled by February 9, 2024. 
• Solar and battery storage could be added to the facility for use as an emergency bank in case 

of disaster. 
• Project must be budget neutral. 
• Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 has $749 billion of funding available. 

 
 Director Graves stated that this was presented to the Water & Wastewater Committee, and the   

committee recommends moving forward. 
 
 Public Comment: 
 

• Speaker voiced concerns over the Town being built on peat. 
 

Director Graves made a Motion to Approve Staff Recommendation to authorize General Manager to   
execute Veolia Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) – Energy Conservation & Renewable Energy 
Program Development upon review and approval by District Legal Counsel. 

 
            Director Porter seconded. 

                 Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 
 

 
2. Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize General Manager to Execute Contract with BSK Contract 

for Geotechnical Preparation Services for the Community Center Retaining Wall in the Amount of 
$19,700. 

 
• Item E-2 was pulled from the agenda. 

 
 
3. Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize General Manager to Execute Contract and Temporary 

Entry Permit for the Installation of a Monitoring Well at the Cecchini Ranch Project. 
 
 Presented by Projects Manager Mike Yeraka. 
 

• It is necessary to drill a well to test the water that is available at the Cecchini Property. 
• Process should take approximately four months. 
• The developer will provide funding. 

 
Director Graves stated the Water and Wastewater Committee has discussed this item and recommends 
moving forward. 
 
Vice-President Graham asked if the development has been named yet, or if it is still referred to as the 
Cecchini Property. 

 

C1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 17, 2024 - Pg.3 

 

 
 

Director Graves made a Motion to Approve Staff Recommendation to Authorize the General Manager 
to execute a Professional Services Agreement with LSCE to perform the work outlined in their proposal 
dated May 31, 2023 and to Authorize the General Manager to execute the attached Temporary Entry 
Permit with Hengli 10 LLC. 

 
            Director Porter seconded. 

                 Vote: Motion carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 
 

 
   
F.    MANAGER’S REPORT 
       None. 
 
G. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 None. 
 
H. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS 

1. Byron Union School District – December 12, 2023 (Director Kevin Graves). 
 
 
I. CORRESPONDENCE 
 None. 
 
J.  LEGAL REPORT 
 None. 
 
K. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 None. 
 

Director Graves mentioned the Water and Wastewater Committee met earlier in the day and discussed the 
Cecchini Property as well as the new District Office building. 

 
President Callahan stated the Parks & Recreation Committee met earlier and decided to remove the 
discussed item from the Board of Directors agenda. Director Gutow reported the Committee discussed a 
retaining wall at the Community Center that is failing. 
 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT     
1. Adjourned at 8:07p.m.to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors on February 7, 2024 

beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  
 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 

C1



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

February 7, 2024 

 
Prepared By:      Margaret Moggia, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By:    Dina Breitstein, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $ 583,518.04 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
  
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2023/2024 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: C2 



         Request for Authorization to Pay Invoices

Syblon Reid $413,689.38

Pacific Gas & Electric $96,962.14

Luhdorff & Scalmanini $22,612.95

AV Structural Inc. $15,805.19

Stantec Consulting Services Inc $10,574.00

Lechowicz & Tseng Municipal Consultants $4,215.00

Freedom Mailing Service, Inc $3,594.38

Valencia Janitorial Plus $3,090.00

Sabie Trucking, Inc. $2,328.33

HASA INC $1,533.03

Town of Discovery Bay CSD $1,411.28

ODP Office Solutions, LLC $1,351.75

ULINE $1,179.48

Contra Costa Health Services $730.00

Kevin Graves $690.00

Carolyn Graham $575.00

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. $527.36

Michael Callahan $460.00

Ashley Porter $345.00

Bryon Gutow $345.00

Denalect Alarm Company $339.58

Discovery Pest Control $218.44

UniFirst Corporation $194.70

Dennis Dean Allen $180.00

Bay Area Driving School, Inc. $153.75

Quadient Leasing USA, Inc. $152.90

Alhambra $108.85

Water Utility Refund Customers $75.53

Community Center Refund Customer $50.00

Verizon Wireless $25.02

$583,518.04

       For The Meeting On February 7, 2024
Town of Discovery Bay CSD

Fiscal Year 7/23 - 6/24

C2



BBoardd Meeting
Februaryy 7,, 2024
Fiscal Year 2024 Mid Year Financial Results 

Fiscal Year 2024 Finance Activities

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss (throughh Decemberr 31)

Fund 20 
(Water)

Fund 21
(Wastewater)

Fund 40 
(Zone 8)

Fund 41 
(Zone 9)

Revenues $2,592,268 $3,672,972 $579,943 $90,403

Expenses $2,008,689 $3,172,710 $411,460 $66,118

Net Income (loss) $583,579 $500,262 $168,483 $24,285

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss  (Water)
Actual Mid-year

Budget

SEC Collections 897,311 813,524

Meter 
Installation 166,749 167,609

Interest Income TBD 68,750

Water Charges 1,361,151 1,450,500

Meter Charge 
Commercial 44,369 42,500

Other 122,688 29,300

Total Revenues $2,592,268 $2,572,183

Fiscal Year 2024 – Through December 31, 2023
Revenues

SEC Collections Meter Installation Interest Income Water Charges Meter Charge Commercial Other

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss  (Water)
Actual Budget

Salary and Benefits 328,683 435,167

Consulting 59,928 143,062

Contract 
Operations 425,743 422,500

Utilities 320,888 320,381

Chemicals 50,436 60,000

Facility 
Maintenance 155,011 494,750

Administrative 
Costs 268,460 293,872

Debt Service 394,337 269,612

Permits 5,203 25,000

Total Expenses $2,008,689 $2,464,344

Fiscal Year 2024 – Through December 31, 2023
Expenses

Salary and Benefits Consulting Contract Operations Utilities Chemicals

Facility Mainteance Administrative Costs Debt Service Permits

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss (Wastewater)

Actual Mid-year
Budget

SEC Collections 3,450,624 3,114,311

Sewer Charge 80,322 78,500

Interest Income TBD 123,750

Capacity 
Fees/Other 142,027 8,650

Total Revenues $3,672,972 $3,325,211

Fiscal Year 2024 – Through December 31, 2023
Revenues

SEC Collections Wastewater Sewer Charge - Commercial Interest Income Connection Fees/Other

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss (Wastewater)

Actual Mid-year
Budget

Salary and Benefits 452,750 505,688

Consulting 19,599 98,150

Contract Operations 760,767 725,500

Utilities 327,556 356,269

Facility Maintenance 10,614 47,500

Administrative Costs 377,043 161,588

Debt Service 1,204,597 899,550

Permits 19,785 62,500

Total Expenses $3,172,710 $2,856,745

Fiscal Year 2024 – Through December 31, 2023
Expenses 

Salary and Benefits Consulting Contract Operations Utilities

Facility Mainteance Administrative Costs Debt Service Permits

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss (Zonee 8)

Actual Mid-year
Budget

Property Tax 470,293 410,155

Community 
Center 56,198 27,000

County Reimburse 38,756 30,000

Rentals 6,058 19,500

Interest TBD -

Other 8,637 3,250

Total Revenues $579,943 $489,905

Fiscal Year 2024 – Through December 31, 2023
Revenues

Current Secured Property Tax Community Center CCC Vehicle Reimbursement Rentals Interest Other

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss (Zonee 8)
Community 

Center
Actual Mid-year

Budget

Salary and Benefits 94,093 151,450

Facility Maintenance 34,427 29,650

Administrative Costs 26,944 25,645

Utilities 29,019 25,250

Program Costs 32,018 31,125

Total Expenses $216,502 $263,120

196,077 

51,405 

59,664 

59,400 

36,767 

Fiscal Year 2023
Preliminary Expenses - Community Center

Salary and Benefits Administrative Costs Facility Maintenance Utilities Program Costs

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss (Zonee 8)
Landscape Actual Mid-year

Budget

Salary and Benefits 62,025 75,439

Facility Maintenance 43,587 41,200

Administrative Costs 18,050 22,872

Utilities 71,247 75,000

Total Expenses $194,958 $214,511

Fiscal Year 2024 – Through December 31, 2023
Expenses - Landscape

Salary and Benefits Administrative Costs Facility Maintenance Utilities

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss (Zonee 9)

Actual Mid-year
Budget

Assessment 
Income 90,403 78,360

Interest Income TBD 2,100

County Reimburse 0 6,500

Total Revenues $90,403 $173,920
90,403 

--

Fiscal Year 2024 – Through December 31, 2023
Revenues

Assessment Income Interest Income CCC Vehicle Reimbursement

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Mid-Yearr Resultss (Zonee 9)
Actual Mid-year

Budget

Salary and Benefits 14,230 30,022

Facility Maintenance 33,357 20,875

Administrative Costs 7,398 13,125

Utilities 11,134 14,300

Total Expenses $66,118 $78,322

Fiscal Year 2024 – Through December 31, 2023
Expenses

Salary and Benefits Facility Maintenance Administrative Costs Utilites

F1



FFYY 20244 Capitall Projectt Spend
Water Projects

- Ongoing
• Marina – Approx. $2K

• Newport and Willow Filter Repair - $148K

• Well 8
• Bond Fund ~ $598K
• District Funds ~$115K

F1



FFYY 20244 Capitall Projectt Spend
Wastewater Projects

- Ongoing

• Diffuser ~$10K 

• Denitrification (nearing project completion)
• Bond Fund ~ $2.9 Million (cumulative $12.4 Million)
• District Funds ~$5K (cumulative $6.5 Million) 

F1



FFYY 20244 Capitall Projectt Spend
Landscape Projects

- Ongoing

• Cornell Park $128K (Prop 68 Grant Funded)

• Clipper Drive
• Parks $167K (Project to date - $418K)
• Streetscape $42K

F1



FFYY 20244 Debtt Portfolioo Decemberr 11 Bondd Paymentss 

2017 2022 2022B
(Refunded 2012)

Original Debt Issuance $8,825,000 $16,860,000 $11,650,000

Current Debt Outstanding $7,640,000 $16,400,000 $10,768,000

All In Total Interest Cost % 3.9281% 4.1924% 3.6837%

Final Maturity 12/1/2047 12/1/2052 12/1/2042

Water Construction Proceeds - $4.7M
Wastewater Construction Proceeds - $0.9M

F1



FFiscall Yearr 20244 Financee Activities

• Annual Audit:  State Controller Report filed 

• Update Rate Study for Water rates

• Purchasing Card Program

F1



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 

Meeting Date 
 

February 07, 2024 

 

 
Prepared By:     Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
Submitted By:   Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
 
Agenda Title:   
 
Discussion and Possible Action to Set the Date and Time of the 2024 Annual Board Workshop. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Set date and time for 2024 Annual Board Workshop.  Staff recommendation is March 14, 2024. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
Each year the Board schedules an interactive workshop with staff to review Town accomplishments and future direction.   
 
Last year, the Annual Board Workshop was held Thursday, March 16, 2023 at 4:00pm.  
 
Staff recommends March 14, 2024 at 4:00 PM for the next Board Workshop.  This date and time allows staff the time 
necessary to prepare for the workshop and take input from the Board.  The 4:00pm time frame has in the past, been the 
most convenient time period for all Board Members to attend. Staff estimates that the workshop will not last longer than 
two hours. 
 
Primary Recommended Date:   March 14, 2024 
 
Alternative Dates for Consideration:     Day or Evenings:  March 21, 2024 at 4:00 PM 
                                                                                              March 28, 2024 at 4:00 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
February 2, 2017 Annual Board Workshop for 2017 
March 1, 2018 Annual Board Workshop for 2018 
March 7, 2019 Annual Board Workshop for 2019 
March 5, 2020 Annual Board Workshop for 2020 
March 4, 2021 Annual Board Workshop for 2021 
March 24, 2022 Annual Board Workshop for 2022 
March 16, 2023 Annual Board Workshop for 2023 
 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM: G1 



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 

February 7, 2024 

 
Prepared By:     Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
Submitted By:   Dina Breitstein, General Manager  
Agenda Title        
Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Resolution 2024-01 Amending the Bylaws and Board Policy of the Town of 
Discovery Bay. 
  
Recommended Action 

 
Approve Resolution 2024-01 Amending Board Policy No.002 Bylaws – deleting the following lines in the Board Policy 
Bylaws: Article IV Section 2. Terms and Responsibilities of Elected Officers, Paragraph 7, to read as follows: 
 
“Each advisory Standing Committee shall meet within the boundaries of the Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Services District or at a Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District facility. Each Standing Committee shall 
establish its meeting schedule. Said meetings shall be noticed pursuant to the Brown Act.”  
  
 
Executive Summary  
  
On March 25, 1998, the Bylaws of the Town of Discovery Bay CSD were initially adopted by Resolution No. 98-07.  The 
Bylaws were subsequently amended on December 16, 2020, November 3, 2021, and May 18, 2022.  These 
amendments were made to aid the District with workflow and meet its changing needs.   
 
To streamline the District’s committee meeting process, staff requests to reduce the number of monthly committee 
meetings.  Staff recommends amending Article IV of the Board Bylaws to delete Section 2. Terms and Responsibilities 
of Elected Officers.  Paragraph 7, sentence two segment, “which shall, at a minimum, meet at least quarterly.  This 
would allow each committee to set its meeting schedule based on necessity.   
 
Subsequently, Staff will be recommending that the Communications Committee and the Internal Operations Committee 
revise their respective bylaws to the following:   
 
Communication Committee:  Article V: Meetings, Section 1 – deleting “Board Policy requires that all committee 
meetings occur at least once quarterly.” And “and will occur every odd number month on the first Wednesday at 3:30 
PM.” As well as deleting Article XI: Amending Bylaws, Section 2.  Deleting “Notice of any proposed amendment must be 
given to all members of the Committee at least one week prior to the meeting at which the amendment is proposed to 
occur.” 
 
Internal Operations Committee:  Article V: Meetings, Section 1 – deleting “Board Policy requires that all committee 
meetings occur at least once quarterly.” And “and will occur every even number month on the first Wednesday at 4:30 
PM.” As well as deleting Article XI: Amending Bylaws, Section 2.  Deleting “Notice of any proposed amendment must be 
given to all members of the Committee at least one week prior to the meeting at which the amendment is proposed to 
occur.” 
 
The below details the minimum schedule for the Committee meetings Article V: Meetings, Section 1. individual 
committee meetings bylaws.  All established meeting times and places remain in effect.   
 
  



 
 

 
Committee Meeting schedule is as follows: 
 
1. WATER AND WASTEWATER COMMITTEE shall, at a minimum, meet at least quarterly.  
2. PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE shall, at a minimum, meet at least quarterly.  
3. FINANCE COMMITTEE shall, at a minimum, meet at least quarterly. 
4. COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE shall meet as needed.   
5. INTERNAL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE shall meet as needed.   
 

 
Recommended Action  
Approve Resolution 2024-01 Amending Board Policy No.002 Bylaws – deleting the following lines in the Board Policy 
Bylaws:  Article IV Section 2. Terms and Responsibilities of Elected Officers, Paragraph 7, to read as follows: 
 
“Each advisory Standing Committee shall meet within the boundaries of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 
District or at a Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District facility. Each Standing Committee shall establish its 
meeting schedule. Said meetings shall be noticed pursuant to the Brown Act.”  

 
Fiscal Impact:  
Amount Requested: N/A 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes 
Prog/Fund #   Category:         
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item: 
 
Resolution 1998-07 Policy No.002 Bylaws 
Resolution 2020-28 Policy No.002 Bylaws 
Resolution 2021-15 Policy No.002 Bylaws 
Resolution 2022-16 Policy No. 002 Bylaws 
  
Attachments: 
 
1. Resolution 2024-01 
2. Draft Amended Board Policy No.002 – Bylaws  
3. Draft Amended Communications Committee  
4. Draft Amended Internal Operations Committee  
  

 
AGENDA ITEM:  G2 



TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN DISCOVERY BAY, 

A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 
AMENDING THE BYLAWS AND BOARD POLICY OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

WHEREAS, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (the “Town”) is a public agency 
and complies with a number of federal and state statutes, and local laws and regulations; and  

WHEREAS, it is in the public’s interest that the Board of Directors adopts and from time to time reviews 
a set of established Town of Discovery Bay Bylaws to provide for those exercise of powers as 
established in California Government Code Section 61000 et seq. (Community Services District Law); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the Town were originally adopted by Resolution No. 98-07 on March 25, 
1998, December 16, 2020, November 3, 2021, and were most recently amended on May 18, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Town’s Board of Directors desire to revise Article IV of the Bylaws to delete Section 2. 
Terms and Responsibilities of Elected Officers.  Paragraph 7, sentence two segment “which shall, at a 
minimum, meet at least quarterly; and  

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to make certain changes and amend the Town of Discovery Bay 
Bylaws and Board Policy. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  That the Bylaws of the Town of Discovery Bay are hereby amended as set forth in 
Section 2, of Article IV - Terms and Responsibilities of Elected Officers, of Policy 002 – Bylaws 
attached to this Resolution and are incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2. That these Amended Bylaws and Board Policy shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption of this Resolution. 

SECTION 3. The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of this Resolution. 

_________________________ 
Michael Callahan 
Board President 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District at a meeting, held on February 7, 2024, by the following 
vote of the Board: 

G2-1



 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
________________________________ 
Dina Breitstein  
Board Secretary 

G2-1



G2-2



G2-2



G2-2



a. Provide guidance/policy recommendations regarding Town of Discovery Bay
Community Services District personnel policies and general administration of the
organization.

Each advisory Standing Committee shall meet within the boundaries of the Town of Discovery 
Bay Community Services District or at a Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
facility. Each Standing Committee shall establish its meeting schedule!._, which shall, at a 
minimum, meet at least quarterly. Said meetings shall be noticed pursuant to the Brown Act. 

-Board Standing Committees are to be assigned based upon the position 'held by the Board
member and the seniority of each member of the Board. Board members will have preference
of committee selections in the following order: President and Vice-President, followed by the
senior most next consecutive Board members. In the event seniority cannot be determined due
to the date of assumption of office, the Board member with the highest vote count in their most
recent election shall prevail as the senior member for purposes of this selection procedure. This
procedure shall be used to fill two appointees to each Standing Committee. Board Members
shall serve on the Standing Committee for a two-year term. Board members may voluntarily
trade committee assignments with another Board member by mutual consent.

The Board may establish Ad Hoc Committees that may become necessary from time to time to 
receive input from the public on a specific subject matter and limited in term, and formed by 
Resolution of the Board. 

A. General Responsibilities of the Board President

1. Shall preside at all meetings of the board and such other meetings approved by the
Board, and have authority to call for short recesses during meetings unless a majority
of the Directors by vote oppose a recess.

2. Cooperatively work with the General Manager/Board Secretary and Staff on the
preparation of CSD Meeting Agendas and its contents.

3. Shall serve as official spokesperson for the Board.

4. Shall designate Directors or others to represent the Board at various meetings,
hearings, and conferences, as confirmed by the Board. May co-sign all checks for
warrants approved by the Board.

5. Shall perform such other duties as necessary to carry out the work of the Board.
6. Shall perform such duties as prescribed by law.

B. General Responsibilities of the Vice-President

1. Shall serve in the absence of the President.

C. Senior Most Board Member 

1476369-2 

1. Shall serve in the absence of the President and the Vice-President.
2. In the event seniority cannot be determined due to the date of assumption of office,

the Board member with the highest vote count in their most recent election shall
prevail as the senior member for purposes of this selection procedure.

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended Ge€ember 20, 2017February 07. 2024 

G2-2



G2-2



G2-2



A. Voting shall only be conducted at proper noticed meeting where a quorum has been 
established and members are physically present. 

B. Voting shall be by voice, show of hands, or roll call vote. 

C. Any vote that is other than unanimous shall be recorded by name of the voting member
and whether the member voted "AYE", "NO" or "ABSTAIN".

Section 4. Notice of Regular and Special Meetings 

A. Notices of Regular Meetings shall be pursuant to the Brown Act. Such notices shall 
specify the place, the day, and the hour of the meeting and accompanying the notice 
shall be a copy of the agenda for that meeting.

B. Notices of Special Meetings shall be pursuant to the Brown Act. In the case of special
meetings, the notice, written or by telephone, shall specify the specific nature of the 
business to be transacted.

ARTICLE VII 

PAYMENTS, CONTRACTS, AND REPORTS 

Section 1. Payments 

All checks, warrants, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences 
of indebtedness issued in the name of, or payable to, the District, shall be signed or endorsed 
by at least two of the District officials listed below: 

• General Manager
•Assistant General Manager
• Finance Manager
• Member of the District Board of Directors

Section 2. Contracts 

The Board, except as in the Bylaws otherwise provided, may authorize any officer or officers, 
agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of, and on 
behalf of, the District. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless 
so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority 
to bind the District by any contract or engagement, to pledge its credit, or to render it liable 
for any purpose or to any amount. 

Section 3. Reports 

The Board shall prepare and cause to be sent an annual water quality report to the residents 
of the District. 

1476369-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended Getember 20, 2017February 07. 2024 

l I I 
t I 

G2-2



G2-2



G2-3



G2-3



G2-4



G2-4



J1



J1



J2



J2



J3



J3



K1



K1



K1



K1



K1



K1



K1



K1


	Agenda - BOD 02 07 24
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	C1 - DRAFT Minutes - BOD 01 17 24---Approved by DB
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	F1 - Finance Presentation Feb 7 Board MeetingPACKET
	G1 - Staff Report Board Workshop 2024
	G2 - Staff Report - Amend Town Policy #002 02072024(1756075.2)
	G2-1 - Resolution 02072024
	G2-2 - Policy 002 - Draft Bylaws Revision 02212024 db edits final.docx
	G2-3 - Communications Committee Bylaws Revised 5-1-19 db 02212024
	G2-4 - Internal Operations Committee Bylaws Revised 6-5-19 db 02212024
	J1 - Byron Union School District - January 11, 2024 -Kevin Graves
	J2 - CCC Aviation - January 11, 2024 -Kevin Graves
	J3 - CCC Airport Committee  -Janaury 22, 2024 - Kevin Graves
	K1 - Correspondence - 2024 Independent Special District Election Packet
	C2-1 - RFA 020724.pdf
	ALLTotal

	Agenda - BOD 02 07 24.pdf
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT




